
     
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 

Vice Mayor Victor Vazquez, Ph. D.                                  Councilman Bob Best  

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo                           Councilman Walter Fajet, Ph. D. 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 

from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 

majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 

personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, October 10, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

 (In-person and virtually. See pages 3-4 for additional information) 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Invocation: Mayor Maria Mitchell 

 Pledge of Allegiance: Audience will lead the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 
   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Presentation by Assistant Principal Desiree Gonzalez-Martinez from the Miami 
Springs Adult & Community Education Center on new educational programs  

 
B) Yard of the Month Award for October 2022 – 550 Hunting Lodge Drive – Olga 

Garcia-Moreno 
 
C) Recognizing Artist of the Month City Hall for October and November 2022 Miami 

Springs Senior High School Students from Ms. Beth Goldstein’s art classes 
 

5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general City business, may do so in 
person (subject to capacity restrictions) or virtually by following the instructions on pages 3-4. This 
portion of the meeting also includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open 
Forum is to encourage residents and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments 
on any item.  The City Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any 
question, issue, and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council 
meetings and shall conduct the meetings accordingly. 

 

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) September 26, 2022 – Regular Meeting 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  None.  

REVISED 



 

8. Public Hearings:   None. 

 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Authorizing The Negotiation And Execution Of A Sixty-Six Month Lease With 
DLL Finance, LLC For The City’s Golf And Country Club Golf Cart Fleet From Club Car, LLC In An 
Amount Not To Exceed $404,960.16 Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of An Omnia Partners 
Cooperative Contract Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Approving An Early 
Lease Termination Of The City’s Existing Golf Cart Lease; Providing For Implementation; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 
B) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Acushnet, as a 

sole source provider, on an "as needed basis" in the amount of $40,000, for purchasing Titleist 
and Foot Joy merchandise to be re-sold in the golf pro shop as there is only one source (proof 
attached) for the required materials and as funds were budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget pursuant 
to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by Golf that Council waive the competitive bid process in the best 

interests of the City because of the installation of the free satellite tank monitors which has 
lowered the overall fuel costs to the city by an estimated $15,600 in comparison to previous years 
and approve an expenditure to Tropic Oil, on an "as needed basis" in the amount of $50,000, for 
fuel supply services of diesel and regular fuel at Miami Springs Golf & Country Club as funds were 
budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
D) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Hector Turf, as the 

sole distributor within the Southeast Florida region, as a sole source provider, on an "as needed 
basis" in the amount of $35,000, for parts needed to repair our Toro golf equipment and for 
irrigation supplies as there is only one source (proof attached) for the required supplies and as 
funds were budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 

E) Recommendation by staff that Council authorize the issuance and/or execution of a 
Purchase Order with Toshiba American Business Solutions, Inc., utilizing the State of Florida 
Alternate Contract Source Number 44000000-NASPO-19-ACS- led by the State of Colorado’s 
ASPO Value Point Master Agreement number: 140604 (attached), in an amount not to exceed 
$31,500.00 which includes the City's currently leased 9 Toshiba copiers citywide ($18,705.00 
annually) and the Managed Print Services for the maintenance and replacement of ink cartridges 
for citywide desktop printers under NASPO Value Point Program ($10,870.00 annually), and 
$1,925.00 for any overages for excessive copies over our monthly allowances as funds were 
budgeted in the FY22/23 departmental budgets pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

 

10. Old Business: None. 
 

11. New Business: 
 

A) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, Florida, 
Approving A Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Amendment To The City’s Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) From “Public Facility” To “Single Family Residential” For A 37,751 Square Foot (±0.86 
Acre) Parcel Of Property Generally Located At 1101 Wren Avenue; Providing For Authorization; 



Providing For Conflicts; Providing For Severability; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 

B) Ordinance – First Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami Springs, Florida, 
Amending Section 32-68, “Mitigation Of Fines,” Of The City’s Code Of Ordinances To Establish 
Procedures And Guidelines For The Mitigation Of Code Enforcement Fines, Penalties And Liens; 
Providing For Codification; Providing For Severability; Providing For Conflicts; And Providing For 
An Effective Date 

 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Providing For The First Budget Amendment To The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
General Fund, Special Revenue, And Capital Projects Fund Budgets By Re-Appropriating 
Reserved Fund Balances To Fund Open Encumbrances Through September 30, 2022; And 
Providing For An Effective Date 

 

12. Other Business:   

 
A) Vote of Confidence for the City Manager as Required by Section 4.02 (2) of the City 

Charter 
 
B) Request by Councilman Fajet to discuss reviewing parking requirement ordinances 

in the City 
 
C) Update on Annexation Application 
  

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 

B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 



 CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a Council meeting on: 

Monday, October 10, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at  

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida  

(Physical Meeting Location) 

 
The meeting agenda is available online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate from the physical meeting location.  

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at the physical meeting location, or, 
alternatively, may watch or call in to the meeting by following these instructions: 

 

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON AT THE PHYSICAL MEETING LOCATION 

The meeting will be held in person at the physical meeting location stated above.  
Admission to the physical meeting location is on a first-come, first-serve basis and space is limited.  

Doors will open 30 minutes prior to the meeting start time.  
The City highly encourages those in attendance to wear facial coverings and abide by social distancing as 

recommended by the CDC.   

WATCH THE MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast, but will be available for later viewing) 

• YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 

• From your computer/mobile device: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE PUBLIC MEETING  

Dial 305-805-5151 or 305-805-5152  
(Alternatively, you may also dial the phone numbers below to join the meeting: 

        1 (646) 558 8656, 1 (301) 715 8592, 1 (312) 626 6799, 1 (669) 900 9128, 1 (253) 215 8782,  

1 (346) 248 7799) then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance of 

the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the email: 
Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying 
Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 words. 
Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion of the 
agenda, if any.  

IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Members of the public may attend the meeting at the physical meeting location 
stated above and deliver their public comments in person during the public comment portion of the agenda.  

VIRTUAL COMMENTS: Public comments will also be accepted during the meeting using the virtual 

meeting platform as follows:  

By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, call in to the meeting using the instructions above. 
Please press *9 from your telephone and you will be called on to speak during public comments and 
identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the meeting, when your name or the last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  



Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

 
Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the 
City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission 
to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City Council members 
present. In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments when 
addressing the Council during public comments. 

 

PUBLIC RECORDS 
The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 

 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 

COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, HE 

OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE 

MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH 

RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or 
entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and 
online at: https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 

Have questions or need additional information? 

Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 

Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
 



 

CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
 

Presented to 

 

Olga Garcia-Moreno 
 

Of 
 

550 Hunting Lodge Drive 
 

for their home being designated as 

 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
October, 2022 

 

Presented this 10th day of October, 2022. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

________________________________ 

                            Maria Puente Mitchell 

                                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________                     

        Erika Gonzalez, MMC 

                 City Clerk  



1

Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria

From: Shannen M. Jaser
Sent: Tuesday, October 4, 2022 9:03 AM
To: Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria
Subject: FW: 6 of 20 participants 

Art @ City Hall Month of October  
 
This is a student designed student taught lesson. 
 

Miami Springs Senior High launches their first Art Club meeting of the year with a whimsical, new 
project. Students created personalized trading cards, featuring all the qualities that make them 
unique. Each card showcases their marker, color pencil skills, and individuality. Get to know the 
students of Miami Springs and witness creative artwork. 
 
 

 
 
 

Thank you! 

 

 

 

Shannen Jaser 😊  

Public Information & Professional Services Specialist   
 
 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
201 Westward Drive  
Second Floor – Professional Services  
Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
(O) 305-805-5010 
(City Cell) 786‐606‐1282  
(E) JaserS@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 

  

               
 

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address 
released in response to a public-records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. 
Instead, contact this office by phone or in writing.  
 Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary.   
 

  

 

 

From: beth goldstein <goldsteinbs@hotmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, October 4, 2022 8:52 AM 
To: Shannen M. Jaser <jasers@miamisprings‐fl.gov> 
Subject: 6 of 20 participants  
 





 

 1 

      

 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes  

Monday, September 26, 2022 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 
Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Vice Mayor Walter Fajet, Ph.D. 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo  
Councilman Victor Vazquez, Ph.D.  
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero  
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Haydee Sera (via Zoom) 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Planning Director Chris Heid  
 
2. Invocation:  Offered by Councilwoman Jacky Bravo 
 Pledge of Allegiance: The audience participated in leading the pledge. 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

 A) Recognizing Charles Hill for Eighteen (18) Years of Service on the Historic 
Preservation Board 

 
Mayor Mitchell welcomed  

 
 

5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 
Council:  Kristopher Fernandez. 
 
6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 29, 2022 – Workshop Meeting 
B) September 12, 2022 – Regular Meeting 

 



 

 2 

Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes of August 15, 2022 Budget 
Workshop and August 22, 2022 Regular Meeting.  Councilman Vazquez seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time.  
 
8. Public Hearings:   
 

A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Adopting The Final Millage Rate For The Fiscal Year 
Commencing October 1, 2022 And Ending September 30, 2023 In The Amount Of 
6.9100 Mills, Which Is 4.14 % Higher Than The Roll-Back Rate Of 6.6352 Mills; 
Announcing The Percentage Increase In Property Taxes; And Providing For An Effective 
Date 

 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read the Resolution by title. 
 
Mayor Mitchell opened the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public 
hearing closed.   
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution adopting the final millage rate.  
Vice Mayor Fajet seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, 
Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 

B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Adopting A Final Budget For The Fiscal Year Commencing 
October 1, 2022 And Ending September 30, 2023; Providing For Expenditure Of 
Budgeted Funds; Providing For Budgetary Controls; Providing For Grants And Gifts; 
Providing For Budget Amendments; Providing For Encumbrances; And Providing For An 
Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read the Resolution by title. 
 
Mayor Mitchell opened the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public 
hearing closed.   
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution adopting the final budget.  
Councilwoman Bravo seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  
The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 

C) Ordinance – Second Reading – An Ordinance Of The City Of Miami 
Springs, Florida, Amending Section 31-11, “Purchasing, Procurement, And Sale 
Procedures” Of The City’s Code Of Ordinances To Update The City’s Procurement 
Provisions; Providing For Conflicts; Providing For Severability; Providing For 



 

 3 

Codification; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read the Ordinance by title. 
 
Mayor Mitchell opened the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public 
hearing closed.   
 
Councilwoman Bravo moved to approve the Ordinance on second reading.  
Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, 
Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And The City Council Of The City 

Of Miami Springs, Florida, [Approving/Denying] A Variance Application By Juan A. Calvo 
For Property Located At 400 Park Street To Provide A 10’8” Front Yard Setback Where 
Section 150-060(E) Of The Code Requires A Minimum Required Front Yard Of Not Less 
Than 30 Feet Or The Average Depth Of The Front Yard Of The Lot Or Lots Next 
Adjacent Thereto On Either Side, Whichever Is The Lesser Of The Two; Providing For 
Conditions; Providing For Violations; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read the Resolution by title and provided a statement 
on quasi-judicial matters.  City Clerk Erika Gonzalez swore-in those that were 
present to speak on the application.  City Planner Chris Heid gave his oral report 
on the applicant’s request.  Mr. Juan Calvo addressed the City Council and 
answered their questions. 
 
Mayor Mitchell opened the public hearing; there were no speakers.  The public 
hearing closed.   
 
Councilman Best moved to approve Resolution as read.  Councilman Vazquez 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez 
and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Approving The Purchase Of Three Vehicles From Duval Ford, 
LLC In An Amount Not To Exceed $172,693.57 Utilizing The Terms And Conditions Of 
The Florida Sheriffs Association Contract Nos. FSA 20-Veh18.0 And FSA 20-Vel28.0 
Pursuant To Section 31-11(E)(5) Of The City Code; Declaring Certain Vehicles As 
Surplus Property; Authorizing The Sale Or Disposition Of Surplus Property; Providing 
For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve Item 9A.  Councilwoman Bravo seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 



 

 4 

Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
10. Old Business:  None at this time. 

 
11. New Business:   
 

A)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 
Miami Springs, Florida, Selecting Amerant Bank, N.A. For Banking Services Pursuant To 
Request For Proposals No. 05-21/22; Approving A Treasury Management Master 
Agreement; Providing For Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title and the staff memo for 
the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Vazquez 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez 
and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Selecting Downtown Towing Company, Inc. For Citywide Towing 
Services Pursuant To Request For Proposals No. 01-21/22; Providing For Authorization; 
And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. Police Chief Armando 
Guzman was present to answer any of the City Council’s questions.  
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Resolution.  Vice Mayor Fajet seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor 
Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Establishing The Centennial Committee; Providing For 
Authorization; And Providing For An Effective Date 
 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 
 
After some discussion, Councilman Vazquez moved to approve the Resolution.  
Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote. The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Bravo, 
Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 

 
D) Resolution – A Resolution Of The Mayor And City Council Of The City Of 

Miami Springs, Florida, Extending The Term Of The Business And Economic 
Development Task Force From September 30, 2022, Through November 30, 2022; 
Providing For Implementation; And Providing For An Effective Date  



 

 5 

 
City Manager William Alonso read the Resolution by title. 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera stated that the Resolution was amended to reflect an 
extension to November 30, 2022. Councilwoman Vazquez moved to approve the 
Resolution.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote. The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Fajet, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Bravo, Councilman Vazquez and Mayor Mitchell voting Yes. 
 
12. Other Business:  None at this time.  
 
13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Haydee Sera stated that in the upcoming week or so, it is expected 
that the City will receive a proposed Interlocal Agreement from Miami-Dade 
County on the annexation. She explained that as soon as the agreement is 
received and reviewed it will come to the City Council for consideration. 
  

B) City Manager 
 

City Manager William Alonso stated that the Assistant City Manager Tammy 
Romero had just lost her father and had to leave the Council meeting.  He gave his 
deepest condolences to her and her family.  He announced all the upcoming City 
events and stated that more information is available on the City website. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Best requested for a moment of silence for Assistant City Manager’s 
recent loss of her father.  He recognized Judge Charles Hill for his service to the 
Historic Preservation Board.  He also stated that the proposed War Memorial 
funding continues to be underway and hopes to see more fundraising in the 
upcoming months.  He wished everyone a Happy Rosh Hashanah. 
 
Councilwoman Bravo sending her prayers to west coast Florida for the impacts of 
Hurricane Ian.  She expressed that she has someone in mind for the Centennial 
Committee, she stated that Michael Gavila would be her choice for the board.  
 
Vice Mayor Fajet expressed his condolences to Tammy Romero and family for her 
recent loss. He stated that the City Council did a great job on the budget and were 
able to allocate funds to the community for continued City services with a 
reduction in the millage rate.   
 
Councilman Vazquez also expressed his condolences to Tammy Romero for the 
loss of her father.  He stated that there are disaster relief efforts for Puerto Rico 
due to the devastation of Hurricane Fiona, if anyone is interested to please reach 
out to him for more information.  He stated that it is Hispanic Heritage Month  and 



 

 6 

recognizes that Hispanics are differ from country to country,  and appreciates the 
national recognition this month.     
 
Mayor Mitchell mentioned that the appointments for the Centennial Committee 
should be submitted to the City Clerk as soon as possible in order to coordinate 
the first meeting.  She stated that the free breast cancer mobile service in 
conjunction with Senator-elect Bryan Avila for assisting the City in coordinating 
this service for the community. Mayor Mitchell reminded the public that the 
Farewell Evening for Commissioner Sosa is Wednesday, September 28th at the 
Curtiss Mansion at 7:00 p.m. Mayor Mitchell expressed her deepest condolences 
to Tammy Romero and her family of the unexpected loss of her father. 
 
 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 7 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 10th day of October, 2022. 
 
 
           
Maria Puente Mitchell, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY 
DECISION MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED 
A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM 
RECORD OF THE PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO 
BE BASED THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE 
INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



Meeting Date: 10/10/2022  

To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria P. Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 

Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    
From:   Paul O'Dell, Golf and Country Club Director 
    

Subject: New Golf Cart Fleet leased via De Lange Landen Financial Solutions 

Partner / DLL Finance, LLC. & Club Car, LLC.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by Golf that Council authorize the City Manager to 

issue a letter of intent to enter into a lease agreement with De Lange Landen Financial Solutions 

Partner / DLL Finance, LLC., through ClubCar, LLC., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract 

#EV2671-01 , for the leasing of a new golf cart fleet consisting of (85) gasoline powered carts,(1) 

Beverage Café Cart, and (1) 4 passenger Transporter Cart financed for a (66) sixty-six month term, 

for $6,135.76 per month beginning October 1, 2023 for an amount not to exceed $404,960.16 over 

the life of the lease pursuant to Section §31-11 (E)(5) of the City Code and to negotiate and execute 

a lease consistent with Club Car’s proposal and the terms of the Omnia Contract  

DISCUSSION: The City of Miami Springs (the “City”) currently leases a fleet of eighty-five (85) 

2014 Club Car gasoline-powered golf carts, a beverage cart, and a utility vehicle (collectively, the 

“2014 Fleet”) from DLL Finance, LLC (the “Leasing Company”) pursuant to a 2018 Lease 

Agreement which provides for a five-year term ending September 30, 2025 (the “2018 Lease”).  

The City intends to begin renovations at the City-owned Golf and Country Club in April 2023. 

During the period of renovations, the 2014 Fleet will not be in use. The City has begun negotiations 

with Club Car and the Leasing Company to provide an early termination of the 2018 Lease, as the 

2014 Fleet will not be in use while the renovations are taking place. The intent is that Club Car 

will retrieve the 2014 Fleet at the commencement of the renovations at the Golf Course and waive 

the balance remaining on the lease payments due under the 2018 Lease (i.e., a total of $24,038.70, 

which is equivalent to $4,807.74 per month).  

Due to the supply chain issues related to the Covid-19 pandemic, any equipment or vehicle will 

need to be procured and ordered a minimum of 12 months in advance, in order to arrive at the 

desired date. The City anticipates that the renovations at the Golf Course will be completed on or 

around October 2023.  

The Leasing Company has agreed to an early termination of the 2018 Lease in exchange for a new, 

66-month lease of eighty-five (85) 2022 Club Car Tempo gasoline-powered golf carts, a 2022 

beverage cart, and a 2022 utility vehicle (collectively, the “2022 Fleet”) for $6,135.76 per month 

beginning October 1, 2023 for an amount not to exceed $404,960.16 over the life of the lease, all 

as set forth in the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (collectively, the “2022 Lease 

Proposal”). The 2022 Lease Proposal is based on a competitively procured contract through Omnia  



 

Partners, Public Sector, a purchasing cooperative, which has agreements with Club Car for the golf 

carts, beverage carts, and utility vehicles needed by the City.  

The proposed new rate schedule for the new sixty-six month lease term, set to commence 

approximately on September 30, 2023 is as follows: 

 
Number of 

Cars 
 

 
Type of Car 

 

 
Lease Term 

 

 
Payment Per Month 

 

 
Total monthly 

Payments over (66) 
months 

 
85 

 

2022 Tempo Gas 

Fleet Car 

 

(66) months 

 

$66.99 x 85 cart 

 

$5,694.15 

 

1 

 

 

2022 Café Express 

 

(66) months 

 

 

$296.84 x 1 cart 

 

$296.84 

 

1 

 
 

2022 Transporter 

Four 

 

(66) months 

 

 

$144.77 x 1 cart 

 

$144.77 

 

 
TOTAL COMBINED MONTHLY PAYMENT (87 Carts)  

 
$6,135.76 

 
TOTAL COMBINED PAYMENT OVER (66) MONTH TERM – (87 Carts) 

 

$404,960.16 
 

It is recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to issue a letter of intent to 

enter into a lease agreement with the Leasing Company for the 2022 Fleet, consistent with the 

terms of the 2022 Lease Proposal in an amount not to exceed $404,960.16 over the life of the 

lease.  

It is further recommended that the City Council authorize the City Manager to negotiate and 

execute a lease agreement with the Leasing Company for the 2022 Fleet consistent with the 2022 

Lease Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” to the resolution and consistent with the terms and 

conditions of the Omnia Contract in an amount not to exceed $404,960.16 over the term of the 

2022 Lease Agreement.  

It is further recommended that the City Council approve the early termination of the 2018 Lease.  

Submission Date and Time:    9/27/2022 1:52 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Golf 
 
Prepared by:  Laurie Bland                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Golf Course Maintenance 
 
Account No.: 001-5707-572-4400            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       0 
 
                       Current request:  $       $404,960.16 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $        

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-  

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING 
THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A SIXTY-SIX 
MONTH LEASE WITH DLL FINANCE, LLC FOR THE 
CITY’S GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUB GOLF CART FLEET 
FROM CLUB CAR, LLC IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$404,960.16 UTILIZING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
OF AN OMNIA PARTNERS COOPERATIVE CONTRACT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 31-11(E)(5) OF THE CITY CODE; 
APPROVING AN EARLY LEASE TERMINATION OF THE 
CITY’S EXISTING GOLF CART LEASE; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) currently leases a fleet of eighty-

five (85) 2014 Club Car gasoline-powered golf carts, a beverage cart, and a utility vehicle 

(collectively, the “2014 Fleet”) from DLL Finance, LLC (the “Leasing Company”) pursuant 

to a 2018 Lease Agreement which provides for a five-year term ending September 30, 

2025 (the “2018 Lease”); and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to begin renovations at the City-owned Golf and 

Country Club in April 2023 and during the period of renovations, the 2014 Fleet will not 

be in use; and  

WHEREAS, the Leasing Company has agreed to an early termination of the 2018 

Lease in exchange for a new, 66-month lease of eighty-five (85) 2022 Club Car gasoline-

powered golf carts, a beverage cart, and a utility vehicle (collectively, the “2022 Fleet”) 

for $6,135.76 per month beginning October 1, 2023 for an amount not to exceed 

$404,960.16 over the life of the lease, all as set forth in the Proposal attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” (collectively, the “2022 Lease Proposal”); and  

WHEREAS, Omnia Partners, Public Sector, is a purchasing cooperative for state 

and local governments, which has competitively procured agreements with Club Car (the 

“Vendor”) for golf carts, beverage carts, and utility vehicles (collectively, the “Omnia 

Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 2 of 4 

 

provides that purchases of supplies, materials, or contractual services under the 

provisions of state or local government, or private sector cooperative purchasing or 

not-for-profit companies, bids or contracts shall be exempt from the competitive bid 

requirements otherwise applicable to such purchases; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 31-11(E)(5) of the City’s Code of 

Ordinances, the City Council authorizes the City Manager to negotiate and execute a 

lease agreement with the Leasing Company for the 2022 Fleet consistent with the 

Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and consistent with the terms and conditions of 

the Omnia Contract; authorizes the expenditure of budgeted funds in an amount not to 

exceed $404,960.16 over the term of the 2022 Lease Agreement; and approves of the 

early termination of the 2018 Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Resolution is in the best interest and 

welfare of the residents of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 

Section 2. Authorization. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to negotiate and execute a lease agreement with the Leasing Company for the 

2022 Fleet consistent with the Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and consistent with 

the terms and conditions of the Omnia Contract, subject to approval by the City Attorney 

as to form, content, and legal sufficiency. That the City Council hereby authorizes the 

expenditure of budgeted funds in an amount not to exceed $404,960.16 over the term of 

the 2022 Lease Agreement. 

Section 3. Approval. That the City Council hereby approves of the early 

termination of the 2018 Lease. 

Section 4. Implementation. That the City Manager is further authorized to 

execute any purchase order or required documentation for the purchases described in 

this Resolution, subject to approval by the City Attorney as to form and legality; and to 

take any action that is reasonably necessary to implement the purpose of this Resolution, 



Res. No. 22-   
Page 3 of 4 

 

including the issuance of a letter of intent to enter into a lease agreement consistent with 

the terms provided for herein. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet     
Councilman Bob Best       
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo     
Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez      
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell     

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
              
      MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:     MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

  



Res. No. 22-   
Page 4 of 4 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CLUB CAR PROPOSAL 

 



Miami Springs Golf Club
Miami Springs, Fla.

June 3, 2022
Presented by: David Kelly



With over 60 years of experience of innovation and design in producing small-wheel vehicles, Club Car is a
leading manufacturer of gas and electric golf, utility and personal transportation vehicles.

Founded in 1958, the Club Car product portfolio has grown to include much more than golf cars, now
encompassing vehicles for commercial and consumer markets, built with an uncompromised desire for
superior performance.

As an industry leader in electrification and sustainability, Club Car is proud to be on the forefront of
environmentally responsible Zero Emission Vehicle (ZEV) technologies.

Company Profile
Club Car combines a quality-driven philosophy, an innovative spirit, and a solutions-oriented approach to
business. Club Car has established itself as a leading global manufacturer of vehicles that serve the golf, rough
terrain, private owner, and commercial markets.

This proposal shall expire thirty days from its date, unless Club Car, LLC. agrees to extend the time frame.  In consideration 
of receipt of this proposal, The County Club of Buffalo agrees that it will hold its contents in confidence and will not 
disclose, use or copy the same in whole or in part for any purpose other than to evaluate this proposal.  

Mobile 
Merchandising

TurfFleet Golf

Utility 4x2

Transport

Utility 4x4

Personal 
Transport

Club Car Connect

Tempo Walk

Fit-to-Task

Street Legal (LSV)



How Do These Partnerships Benefit You? 
● Club Car sponsors PGA section events, educational seminars and 

local chapters to grow the game of golf. 
● If you are a member of VGM, ask about rebates on golf car fleets. 
● If you involved with US Kids, Club Car funds the coaches to educate 

the future of golf. 

Golf Partnerships
Club Car honors the game in its service to 
customers and support of the golf industry



Gas Engine Technology 



We are pleased to present the following quotation for your consideration. See the following specifications page(s) for a 
detailed list of standard vehicle features and benefits.

TEMPO GASOLINE FLEET 

OMNIA CONTRACT # 2671-01

STANDARD EQUIPMENT INCLUDES:
QTY DESCRIPTION

OMNIA OMNIA                  
85         -Tempo Gasoline Powered Fleet Car $6,470.75 $550,013.75

-Body Color (choice of 6 colors) no charge no charge
-Golf Package Gas $272.00 $23,120.00
-Number Decals (2 per car) no charge no charge
-Canopy Top no charge no charge
-Club Protector Bag Cover $237.15 $20,157.75
-Permanent Deluxe On Board Towing $270.30 $22,975.50
-Kenda Hole-N-1 18x8.50x8 4 Ply Steel Wheel no charge no charge
-Standard Wheel Cover no charge no charge
-Hinged Windshield Golf Pkg. Golf Pkg.
-Deluxe info holder $24.65 $2,095.25
-Sand Bucket Kit (2 per car) Golf Pkg. Golf Pkg.
-Miami Springs Logo $23.80 $2,023.00
-Freight $204.00 $17,340.00



We are pleased to present the following quotation for your consideration. See the following specifications page(s) for a 
detailed list of standard vehicle features and benefits.

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
85        New 2023 Tempo Gasoline Powered Fleet Car $7,298.65 $620,385.25

Additional Club Car Discount <$1,860.00>     <$158,100.00>
$462,285.25

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
1          New 2023 Café Express $20,251.20 $20,251.20

Additional Club Car Discount <$2,471.20> <$2,471.20>
$17,780.00

QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT COST TOTAL COST
1          New 2023 Transporter Four Gas Powered $13,135.25          $13,135.25

Additional Club Car Discount <$3,530.25> <$3,530.25>
$9,605.00

The City of Miami Springs’ final payment to be paid on the current contract will be the April 2023 installment. At this point, 
Club Car LLC agrees to pick up all of the current assets and will submit payoff to DLL Financial for the balance due on the lease. 
Miami Springs’ obligation to the current lease will terminate at this point. 



Number of Cars Type of Car Lease Term Payment Per Month Total Monthly Payment

85 2022 Tempo Gas Fleet Car 66 months $66.99 $5,694.15

1 2022 Café Express 66 months $296.84 $296.84

1 2022 Transporter Four 66 months $144.77 $144.77

TOTAL MONTHLY PAYMENT $6,135.76

Lease Quotation

Select Golf Car Color Options
● Body Color White___Green ___   Platinum ___Cashmere ___
● Canopy Top Color   Beige_____ White_____ Black ______        
● Seat Color  Beige ______    White ______  Gray ______ Black _______ 
● Club Protector Bag Cover Beige_____     Black_____  Green  ______

City of Miami Springs Club Car
Signature: ________________________   Signature: _____________________________
Title: _____________________________         Title: __________________________________
Date: ____________________________   Date: __________________________________





           
Meeting Date: 10/10/2022  

 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 
Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    
From:   Paul O'Dell, Golf and Country Club Director 
    

Subject: Acushnet 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Acushnet, as a sole source provider, 

on an "as needed basis" in the amount of $40,000,  for purchasing Titleist and Foot Joy merchandise to 

be re-sold in the golf pro shop as there is only one source (proof attached) for the required materials and 

as funds were budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code. 
 
DISCUSSION: Acushnet owns the rights to Titleist and Foot Joy Brand. We purchase their 

merchandise through a discounted program and re-sale them at market price at our golf shop.    

 

Spent in FY 21/22: $ 59,400    

 
Submission Date and Time:    9/27/2022 2:23 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Golf 
 
Prepared by:  Laurie Bland                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Golf Course Operations 
 
Account No.: 001-5707-572-5205            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       0 
 
                       Current request:  $       40,000.00 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       40,000.00 

 





           
Meeting Date: 10/10/2022  

 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 
Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    
From:   Paul O'Dell, Golf and Country Club Director 
    

Subject: Tropic Oil 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Recommendation by Golf that Council waive the competitive bid process 

in the best interests of the City because of the installation of the free satellite tank monitors which has 

lowered the overall fuel costs to the city by an estimated $15,600 in comparison to previous years and 

approve an expenditure to Tropic Oil, on an "as needed basis" in the amount of $50,000, for fuel supply 

services of diesel and regular fuel at Miami Springs Golf & Country Club as funds were budgeted in the 

FY22/23 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code. 

 

 
DISCUSSION: Tropic Oil installed a free satellite tank monitor which has lowered the overall costs 

of fuel to the Miami Springs Golf & Country Club. We have been testing the monitoring system for the past 

several years and currently have saved approximately $15,600. Because our fuel storage tanks can only hold 

up to 1000 gallons, 500 gallons for unleaded and 500 gallons for dyed off road diesel, this new technology 

has allowed us to better monitor our fuel consumption, efficiency, and bring our costs down overall. Only 

fueling as needed when fuel levels measure below an overall threshold of 600 gallons combined and we do 

not have to pay any delivery fees. In the event of a natural disaster or state of emergency Tropic Oil has 

agreed to supply us with a secondary/temporary fuel storage tank should our storage tank fail. 

 

Spent in FY 21/22: $ 50,000  

 
Submission Date and Time:    9/27/2022 2:25 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Golf 
 
Prepared by:  Laurie Bland                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Golf Course Maintenance 
 
Account No.: 001-5708-572-5202            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       0 
 
                       Current request:  $       50,000.00 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       50,000.00 

 



           
Meeting Date: 10/10/2022  

 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 
Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director 

    
From:   Paul O'Dell, Golf and Country Club Director 
    

Subject: Hector Turf 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an expenditure to Hector Turf, as the sole distributor 

within the Southeast Florida region, as a sole source provider, on an "as needed basis" in the amount of 

$35,000, for parts needed to repair our Toro golf equipment and for irrigation supplies as there is only one 

source (proof attached) for the required supplies and as funds were budgeted in the FY22/23 Budget 

pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(c) of the City Code. 

 
DISCUSSION: Hector Turf is the sole distributor for the Southeast Florida region that carries the 

parts and supplies needed in order to maintain all of the Toro golf equipment at the golf course.   

 

Spent in FY 21/22: $ 35,000  

 
Submission Date and Time:    9/27/2022 2:24 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  Golf 
 
Prepared by:  Laurie Bland                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Golf Course Maintenance 
 
Account No.: 001-5708-572-4600            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       0 
 
                       Current request:  $       35,000.00 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       35,000.00 

 



   
The Toro Company 
 
8111 Lyndale Avenue South, Bloomington, Minnesota  55420-1196 
▪ Phone 952-888-8801   ▪ www.thetorocompany.com   ▪ Fax 952/887-8258 

 
 
 
 
 
 
June 15, 2022 
 
 
Miami Springs Golf Club 
Attn: Ms. Laurie Bland 
650 Curtiss Parkway 
Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
 
Via E-mail: blandl@miamisprings-fl.gov 
 
Dear Laurie, 
 
This letter is to inform you that Hector Turf, at 1301 NW 3rd Street, Deerfield 
Beach, FL 33442 (954-429-3200) is the sole source for Toro commercial turf 
equipment and parts and Toro golf course irrigation products for your geographic 
area. The Toro commercial product line includes Greensmasters, 
Groundsmasters, Reelmasters, Utility Vehicles, Sprayers, Debris Equipment, 
Aeration Equipment, Sand Pros, Commercial Parts, and Irrigation Products. 
  
Thank you for being a valued Toro customer and we look forward to assisting 
you in the near future. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Scott Papania, CSE 
District Sales Manager 
The Toro Company 
Commercial Products Division 
Scott.papania@toro.com 
 
 
 



           
Meeting Date: 10/10/2022  

 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell and Members of the City Council 

 
Via:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin Director 

    
From:   Tammy Romero, Assistant City Manager   

 

Subject:  Toshiba Copier Leases and Managed Print Services Program - Citywide 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation by staff that Council authorize the issuance and/or execution of 

a Purchase Order with Toshiba American Business Solutions, Inc., utilizing the State of Florida Alternate 

Contract Source Number 44000000-NASPO-19-ACS- led by the State of Colorado’s ASPO Value Point 

Master Agreement number: 140604 (attached), in an amount not to exceed $31,500.00 which includes the 

City's currently leased 9 Toshiba copiers citywide ($18,705.00 annually) and the Managed Print Services for 

the maintenance and replacement of ink cartridges for citywide desktop printers under NASPO Value Point 

Program ($10,870.00 annually), and $1,925.00 for any overages for excessive copies over our monthly 

allowances as funds were budgeted in the FY22/23 departmental budgets pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of 

the City Code. 

 

DISCUSSION: The City currently leases 9 copiers from Toshiba in which we are currently in our twenty-

sixth month of our 48-month lease. In addition to the leased copiers the City also utilizes Toshiba's 

Managed Print Services Program for maintenance and replacement ink cartridges for all of the qualifying 

desktop printers within the City. The current State contract offers lower monthly rates over the 48-month 

lease utilizing the State of Florida’s Agreement No. 44000000-NASPO-19-ACS via solicitation RFP-NP-

18-001. 

 
 FISCAL IMPACT: None, as each department budgets for their own departmental copiers and printers. 

 

 Submission Date and Time:    10/5/2022 11:12 AM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  City Manager  
 
Prepared by:  Tammy Romero                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
Dept./ Desc.: various/Rentals & Leases 
 
Account No.:  
City Clerk 001-0301-513-4400 

Bldg/Code 145-2401-524-4400 
Police 001-2001-521-4402 

CPO 650-2011-521-4402 

Finance 001-0501-513-4400 
PW 001-5401-541-5200 

SC 140-5101-519-4400 

Amount previously approved: $_______________ 
 
Current request:         $ 31,500.00 
 
Total vendor amount: $ 31,500.00 
 
Total vendor amount: $32,200.00  

 

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: BA4BC491-5921-4084-B003-85BFB90C3BB6



DocuSign Envelope ID: BA4BC491-5921-4084-B003-85BFB90C3BB6



Tami Fillyaw

Chief of Staff

DocuSign Envelope ID: BA4BC491-5921-4084-B003-85BFB90C3BB6

3/9/2020 | 3:18 PM EDT



DocuSign Envelope ID: BA4BC491-5921-4084-B003-85BFB90C3BB6









































































































































































Page | 1 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Mayor & City Council  
 
FROM: Christopher Heid, City Planner 
 
DATE: October 10, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment to the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from Public 

Facilities to Single Family Residential 
 
CASE:  02-C-22 
 
APPLICANT: Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC 
 
ADDRESS: 1101 Wren Avenue 
 
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1C Single Family Residential 
 
FURURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) CATEGORY:  Public Facilities 
 
THE PROPERTY: The property is generally rectangular in shape, spanning a full 
block bounded by Wren Avenue on the south, Hammond Drive (east) and 
Hammond Drive (west) and Oriole Avenue on the north.  The property contains 
39,736 square feet or 0.91 Acres. 
 
THE REQUEST: The applicant is seeking an amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive Plan from Public Facilities to Single Family 
Residential for a 39,736 square (0.91 Acre) property at 1101 Wren Avenue. 
 
ANALYSIS: Currently, the Future Land Use Map category of Public Facilities and 
the zoning of R-1C Single Family Residential are inconsistent.  Development of 
this parcel for any use is therefore not possible.  
 
According to Policy 1.1.8 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Single Family 
Residential Category “allows single family detached homes on lots of at least 
7,500 square feet of net area. . . [and] development shall not exceed 5 dwelling 
units per acre, including rights-of-way.” 
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment advances the following goals, objectives, and 
policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

   201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL  33166 

Phone:(305) 805-5030 
Fax:(305) 805-5036 

 



Page | 2 

 
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.3: In general, encourage the elimination 
or reduction of uses which are inconsistent with the community's character and 
future land uses. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its 
supporting policies  
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment will advance Objective 1.3 because it will 
eliminate a use that, while historically used for a community organization, is 
inconsistent with the character of the neighborhood. 
  
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.7: Discourage the proliferation of urban 
sprawl. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its supporting 
policy.  
 
Miami Springs has been a single-family refuge in Miami-Dade County. At a time 
when the inventory of single-family homes is decreasing throughout the County, 
the development of four (4) new single-family homes helps discourage of urban 
sprawl by creating new inventory within the urban development boundary.  
 
Future Land Use Element Objective 1.10: Decisions regarding the location, 
extent and intensity of future land use will be based upon the physical and 
financial feasibility of providing all urbanized areas with services at levels of 
service (LOS) which meet or exceed the minimum standards adopted in the 
Capital Improvements Element.  
 
The level of service for infrastructure in the City will not be impacted by the 
addition of four (4) single-family homes. Conversely, the Public Building category 
permits uses of greater intensity that could have a negative impact on water, 
sewer, and road infrastructure.  
 
Future Land Use Element Policy 1.10.3: Miami Springs shall continue and, 
where possible, improve efforts to coordinate projects to construct or repair 
infrastructure such as roadways and utilities in order to minimize the disruption 
and inconvenience caused by such construction activities.  
 
The proposed FLUM Amendment is consistent with Policy 1.10.3 as it will allow 
the property to be developed with new single family homes, with supporting 
infrastructure such as alleys (east to west). Alleys are not currently possible 
because of the interference with the current use. A new alley will allow garbage 
collection to proceed directly east or west through the property, instead of having 
to drive around the block each time, saving time and fuel. Additionally, access to 
the Property during construction could be accomplished via the new alley. Lastly, 
the four intersections at the corners of Hammond and Wren and Oriole will be 
improved with accessibility enhancements.  
 



Page | 3 

Future Land Use Element Objective 1.12: Assure compatibility of adjacent land 
uses and developments through plan adoption and implementation procedures.  
 
As previously discussed, this objective is accomplished because the proposed 
new single-family use is compatible and consistent with the abutting and adjacent 
single-family land uses. Moreover, approval of the proposed FLUM Amendment 
would align the land use and zoning of the Property, eliminating a conflict and 
advancing appropriate land use policies and practices.  
 
Housing Element Goal 1: Ensure the availability of affordable sound and 
diversified housing stock in Miami Springs.  
 
The contemplated project associated with the FLUM Amendment calls for four (4) 
new, high-end single-family homes. The homes are planned to have at least four 
(4) bedrooms adding to the housing stock of larger homes in Miami Springs, 
which has historically lacked homes with more than three (3) bedrooms.  
 
The Site Plan provides for single-family homes within the density permitted in the 
Comprehensive Plan. The site area for each lot is nearly 9,000 sq. ft., which 
exceeds the requirements of both the Comprehensive Plan and the City Code. 
The Site Plan meets all height, lot coverage, and setback requirements in 
Section 150-043 of the City Code.  
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.    - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A SMALL SCALE 3 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY’S 4 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) FROM “PUBLIC 5 

FACILITY” TO “SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL” FOR A 6 

37,751 SQUARE FOOT (±0.86 ACRE) PARCEL OF 7 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 1101 WREN 8 

AVENUE; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; 9 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 10 

SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 11 

DATE. 12 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements set forth in Chapter 163, Florida 13 

Statutes, Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC (the “Applicant”) is requesting a Small Scale 14 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment to modify the City of Miami Springs’ (the “City”) Future 15 

Land Use Map (FLUM) from “Public Facility” to “Single Family Residential” for a 37,751 16 

square foot (± 0.86 acre) parcel of property generally located at 1101 Wren Avenue (the 17 

“Property”), as legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, (the “FLUM 18 

Amendment”); and 19 

WHEREAS, after careful review and deliberation, City Staff has determined that 20 

the FLUM Amendment is in compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 21 

consistent with Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes, as set forth in the City Staff’s Report 22 

and Recommendations, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” 23 

and which contains data and analysis supporting the FLUM Amendment; and  24 

WHEREAS, Section 150.130 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) 25 

provides that the City Council has been designated at the Local Planning Agency for the 26 

City pursuant to Section 163.3174, Florida Statutes; and 27 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 150.131 of the City’s Code of Ordinances and 28 

Section 163.3174(4), Florida Statutes, on     , 2022, at a duly 29 

noticed public hearing in accordance with law, the City Council, sitting as the Local 30 

Planning Agency, considered the recommendation of City Staff, the Applicant’s 31 

application, and all comments received concerning the FLUM Amendment as required by 32 

State laws and local ordinances, and recommended approval of the FLUM Amendment; 33 

and  34 

WHEREAS, after reviewing the Local Planning Agency’s recommendation, the 35 

recommendation of City Staff, the Applicant’s application, and comments from the public, 36 

the City Council finds that the proposed FLUM Amendment to the City’s Comprehensive 37 

Plan for the Property is in compliance with and consistent with Florida law and the City’s 38 

Comprehensive Plan and wishes to approve this Ordinance. 39 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 2 of 3 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 40 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:1 41 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 42 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 43 

Section 2. Approval of Small Scale Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 44 

Map (FLUM) Amendment. Pursuant to Section 163.3187, Florida Statutes, the City 45 

Council hereby approves a small scale Comprehensive Plan amendment of the City’s 46 

Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from “Public Facility” to “Single Family Residential” for the 47 

for a 37,751 square foot (± 0.86 acre) parcel of property generally located at 1101 Wren 48 

Avenue (the “Property”), as legally described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 49 

incorporated herein. 50 

Section 3. Authorization. That the City Manager, by and through the Director 51 

of Zoning and Planning, is authorized to make the necessary changes the City’s 52 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) to reflect the FLUM Amendment 53 

approved by this Ordinance. 54 

Section 4. Conflicts. All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 55 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 56 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 57 

Section 5. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 58 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 59 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 60 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 61 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 62 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 63 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 64 

immediately upon adoption on second reading, except that, pursuant to Section 65 

163.3187(5)(c), Florida Statutes, the FLUM Amendment adopted by this Ordinance shall 66 

not become effective until 31 days adoption. If timely challenged, the FLUM Amendment 67 

adopted by this Ordinance may not become effective until the state land planning agency 68 

or the Administration Commission, respectively, issues a final order determining that the 69 

adopted small scale development amendment is in compliance with Section 163.3184, 70 

Florida Statutes. 71 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the   day of  , 2022,, on a motion made 72 

by      and seconded by     . 73 

                                                            
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with double strikethrough and double underline. 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 3 of 3 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 74 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 75 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 76 

Vice Mayor Dr. Walter Fajet    77 

Councilman Bob Best      78 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    79 

Councilman Dr. Victor Vazquez    80 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    81 

 82 

 83 

              84 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 85 

MAYOR 86 

ATTEST: 87 

 88 

 89 

        90 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  91 

CITY CLERK 92 

 93 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 94 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 95 

 96 

 97 

        98 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 99 

CITY ATTORNEY 100 



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 7 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Legal Description and  

Property Appraiser Information 

 

 

Address:   1101 Wren Avenue, Miami Spring, FL 33166 

Lot Size:   39,751 sq. ft.  

Legal Description:  Tract A, of Second Addition to Spring View, according to the Plat thereof, 

as recorded in Plat Book 51, at Page 100, of the Public Records of Miami-

Dade County 

 

 

 

 

  



VIA HAND DELIVERY 

 

September 8, 2022 

 

Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

City of Miami Springs 

501 Palm Avenue, 2nd Floor 

Hialeah, FL  33010 

 

Re: Resubmittal of Letter of Intent: Request for Approval of Future 

Land Use Map Amendment and Replat 

1101 Wren Avenue (05-3024-017-0010)     

 

Dear Mr. Heid: 

 

On behalf of Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC (the “Owner”), 

please allow this to serve as our resubmitted letter of intent for the 

attached Applications for Future Land Use Map Amendment and 

Replat (the “Applications”) for the property located at 1101 Wren 

Avenue (the “Property”) in the City of Miami Springs (the “City”).  

The purpose of the Applications is to align the land use designation 

and the zoning category for the Property and permit the 

subdivision of the property into four lots for the construction of 

four single-family homes, in keeping with the character of the 

neighborhood.  We recognized that the City is currently midway 

through the approval of its Evaluation and Appraisal Report, but 

we nevertheless request that you accept and begin review of our 

applications during the pendency of the EAR approval.   

  

Background.  The Property is a modest lot with an area of 

39,751 square feet, located on Hammond Drive between Wren and 

Oriole Avenues. See Exhibit “A” for the Property’s Legal Description 

and the Property Appraiser’s Summary for more information on the 

Property. Below, in Figure 1, you will find an aerial image of the 

Property.  The Property was platted in 1951 as Tract A of the 

Second Addition to the Spring View Subdivision as the only non-

single-family parcel in the subdivision.  The surrounding properties 

remain single family lots.  A survey of the Property is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “B” for your reference. 

 

200 S. Biscayne Boulevard 

Suite 300, Miami, FL 33131 

 

www.brzoninglaw.com 

 

305.377.6227 office 

305.377.6222 fax 

mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 2 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

 
Figure 1. Aerial. 

Requests.  The Owner desires to improve the Property with four (4) high-end single-family 

homes.  To do so, the Owner hereby petitions the City of Miami Springs for hearings before the 

City Council, and as applicable, the Planning and Zoning Board: 

 

(1) Approval of the change in the Property’s Land Use designation from Public Building 

to Single Family Residential; and 

 

(2) Approval of the replat, subdividing the Property into (4) lots.  

 

The amendment to the City’s Future Land Use Map and the replat require public hearings.   

 

Future Land Use Map Amendment.   The Property on the City’s Future Land Use Map is 

designated as “Public Building,” but it is zoned residential as R-1C, causing an inconsistency 

between Land Use and the Zoning.  Excerpts of the City’s Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map 

are provided below in Figures 2 and 3 for reference. It should be noted that the Public Building 

Use designation only permits governmental and healthcare facilities, as well as public parks and 

utilities.  Conversely, the R-1C zoning district only permits single-family homes. Despite this 

circumstance, the property has been the home of the Optimist Club Clubhouse, as is commonly 

known, and used for a variety of civic and assembly uses, including as an assembly hall for rent.  

The Property was sold last year.  This land use and zoning conflict currently makes any 

development on the property impossible.   



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 3 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

 

 
Figure 2 - Future Land Use Map Excerpt 

 

 
Figure 3 - Zoning Map Excerpt 

 

To address the inconsistency between the land use designation and zoning category for 

the Property, the Owner is seeking an amendment to the City’s Future Land Use Map (“FLUM 

Amendment”) from Public Building to Single Family Residential, making the Property consistent 

with all of the surrounding properties.  According to Policy 1.1.8 of the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan, the Single Family Residential Category “allows single family detached homes on lots of at 

least 7,500 square feet of net area. . . [and] development shall not exceed 5 dwelling units per 

acre, including rights-of-way.”  The Single Family Category could be implanted by several zoning 

districts, including, but not limited to, the Property’s current R-1C zoning.  The proposed four (4) 

single-family homes would be permitted through this Single Family Residential land use category 

and the R-1C zoning.  

 

The FLUM Amendment proposes a use that is consistent with the single-family character 

of the surrounding properties and all of the City’s “Bird Section.”  What is more, the FLUM 

Amendments eliminates a use which, despite being historically permitted, is inconsistent 



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 4 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

with the neighborhood. Additionally, the proposed FLUM Amendment advances the 

following goals, objectives, and policies of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:  

 

• Future Land Use Element Objective 1.3:   In general, encourage the elimination 

or reduction of uses which are inconsistent with the community's character and 

future land uses. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its 

supporting policies 

 

The change proposed by the FLUM Application will advance Objective 1.3 because it will 

eliminate a use that, while historically used for a community organization, is inconsistent 

with the character of the neighborhood.  Possible redevelopment of the Property with 

other uses permitted in the Public Building category would increase the inconsistency.  

The development of four (4) single family homes is consistent with the character of the 

neighborhood.  

 

• Future Land Use Element Objective 1.7:  Discourage the proliferation of urban 

sprawl. This objective shall be measured by implementation of its supporting 

policy. 

 

Miami Springs has been a single-family refuge in Miami-Dade County.  At a time when 

the inventory of single-family homes is decreasing throughout the County, the 

development of four (4) new single-family homes helps discourage of urban sprawl by 

creating new inventory within the urban development boundary.  

 

• Future Land Use Element Objective 1.10:  Decisions regarding the location, 

extent and intensity of future land use will be based upon the physical and financial 

feasibility of providing all urbanized areas with services at levels of service (LOS) 

which meet or exceed the minimum standards adopted in the Capital 

Improvements Element.   

 

The level of service for infrastructure in the City will not be impacted by the addition of 

four (4) single-family homes.  Conversely, the Public Building category permits uses of 

greater intensity that could have a negative impact on water, sewer, and road 

infrastructure.  

 

• Future Land Use Element Policy 1.10.3:  Miami Springs shall continue and, where 

possible, improve efforts to coordinate projects to construct or repair infrastructure 



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 5 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

such as roadways and utilities in order to minimize the disruption and 

inconvenience caused by such construction activities.  

 

The site plan for the proposed home furthers this policy because a new alley running the 

width of the property from east to west is planned to be constructed with the new homes, 

connecting existing alleys on either side of the Property.  This new alley connection has 

not been possible because of the interference with the current use.  The new alley would 

allow garbage collection to proceed directly east or west through the property, instead of 

having to drive around the block each time, saving time and fuel.  Additionally, access to 

the Property during construction could be accomplished the new alley.  Lastly, the four 

intersections at the corners of Hammond and Wren and Oriole will be improved with 

accessibility enhancements.  

 

• Future Land Use Element Objective 1.12: Assure compatibility of adjacent land 

uses and developments through plan adoption and implementation procedures. 

 

As previously discussed, this objective is accomplished because the proposed new single-

family use is compatible and consistent with the abutting and adjacent single-family land 

uses.  Moreover, approval of the proposed FLUM Amendment would align the land use 

and zoning of the Property, eliminating a conflict and advancing appropriate land use 

policies and practices.  

 

• Housing Element Goal 1:  Ensure the availability of affordable sound and 

diversified housing stock in Miami Springs. 

 

The contemplated project associated with the FLUM Amendment calls for four (4) new, 

high-end single-family homes.  The homes are planned to have  at least four (4) bedrooms 

adding to the housing stock of larger homes in Miami Springs, which has historically 

lacked homes with more than three (3) bedrooms. 

 

 

Approval of Application to Replat. Pursuant to Section 150-019 of the City Code, the 

Owner is submitting an application to replat the Property to accomplish its subdivision in four lo

ts.  For your review, attached as Exhibit “C”, you will find the proposed tentative plat (the “T-Plat”

). As stated above, the resulting lots will be legally sized.  The replat of the Property will also serv

ice to dedicate the alley to the City.  The replat satisfies the requirements of Sections 150-019 an

d 150-020.  Prior to approval of the tentative plat by the City Council, an opinion of title for the 

Property will be furnished, which will be updated prior to approval of the final plat.  



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 6 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

Attached, for your review, and the consideration of the Zoning and Planning Board and the City 

Council. 

 

Conclusion.  The proposed four single family homes constitute a modest development 

designed with the character of Miami Springs in mind. On behalf of the Owner, we respectfully 

request your favorable consideration for our applications for Future Land Use Map Amendment, 

and Replat review. It is understood that this letter and the corresponding petitions will become 

part of the permanent records of the City.  The statements contained and in the corresponding 

petition are true and correct to the best of my knowledge.   We look forward to presenting the 

Future Land Use Map Amendment and Replat Applications to the Planning and Zoning Board, 

as well as to the City Council, with the City administration’s favorable recommendation.  One 

final note, as per your direction, the request for site plan review has been removed, and the 

zoning review will occur during construction permitting. Thank you for your attention to this 

matter.  Should you have any questions, please call me at your convenience. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 
Melissa Tapanes Llahues 

Enclosures 

  



Mr. Chris Heid 

City Planner 

Page 7 

 

 

Bercow Radell Fernandez Larkin & Tapanes | 305.377.6227 direct | 305.377.6222 fax | mtapanes@brzoninglaw.com 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Legal Description and  

Property Appraiser Information 

 

 

Address:   1101 Wren Avenue, Miami Spring, FL 33166 

Lot Size:   39,751 sq. ft.  

Legal Description:  Tract A, of Second Addition to Spring View, according to the Plat thereof, 

as recorded in Plat Book 51, at Page 100, of the Public Records of Miami-

Dade County 

 

 

 

 

  



  

OFFICE OF THE PROPERTY APPRAISER 
Summary Report 

Property Information 

05-3024-017-0010 

1101 WREN AVE 

Miami Springs, FL 33166-3856 

ENCLAVE AT MIAMI SPRINGS LLC 

665 SW 8 ST 

MIAMI, FL 33130 USA 

0400 SGL FAMILY - 901-1200 SQF 

7742 BENEVOLENT - EXEMPT : 

CLUB OR HALL - PRIVATE 

Mailing Address 

Beds / Baths / Half 

  

Adjusted Area 5,500 Sq.Ft 

39,751 Sq.Ft 
  

<|
 

rr
 

r
|
»
|
C
c
|
m
 

vU
 

U
 

vU
 

I
e
 

<
|
a
l
<
l
o
 

= 
> 

o 
= 

S
l
e
 

|
5
|
9
 

3 
a)
 

D 
D
 

0 
a 

o 
= 

o 
O
N
 

Q 
2 

e
l
a
 

= 
2 

E
o
 

>
I
D
I
C
 

< 
3 

E 
= 

e
l
a
 

| 
5 

3 
> 

CEE 
EE
 

5 
2 

2 
| 5

 
E
 

; 
o 

|” 
a 

Multiple (See Building Info.) 

Assessment Information 

Ma 

van | snes 

Benefits Information 

2020 

$280,245 

$205,478 

$22,308 

2019 

$280,245 

$199,568 

$22,308 

$508,031 

$508,031 

$502,121 

$502,121   
  

Benefit Type 

Non-Homestead Cap |Assessment Reduction 

Note: Not all benefits are applicable to all Taxable Values (i.e. County, School 

Board, City, Regional). 

Short Legal Description 

24 53 40 0.91 AC M/L 

SPRING VIEW 2ND ADDN PB 51-100 

TRACT A 

LOT SIZE 39751 SQUARE FEET 

     

  

Generated On : 6/3/2022 

A 
N 

_— 

J 
aM ud | = 

Taxable Value Information 

2021 2020 

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121 

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 80 

School Board 

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121 

Taxable Value $564,106 $0 

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121 

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 80 

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121 

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 IE 

Qualification Description 

06/23/2021 $950,000 32601-3188 |Qual by verifiable & documented 
evidence 

05/08/2019 - 
——- 31436-4824 Federal, state or local government 

agency 

  

The Office of the Property Appraiser is continually editing and updating the tax roll. This website may not reflect the most current information on record. The Property Appraiser 

and Miami-Dade County assumes no liability, see full disclaimer and User Agreement at http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp 

Version:

Property Information

Folio: 05-3024-017-0010

Property Address: 1101 WREN AVE 
Miami Springs, FL  33166-3856

Owner ENCLAVE AT MIAMI SPRINGS LLC

Mailing Address 665 SW 8 ST 
MIAMI, FL 33130 USA

PA Primary Zone 0400 SGL FAMILY - 901-1200 SQF

Primary Land Use 7742 BENEVOLENT - EXEMPT :
CLUB OR HALL - PRIVATE

Beds / Baths / Half 0 / 0 / 0

Floors 1

Living Units 0

Actual Area Sq.Ft

Living Area Sq.Ft

Adjusted Area 5,500 Sq.Ft

Lot Size 39,751 Sq.Ft

Year Built Multiple (See Building Info.)

Assessment Information

Year 2021 2020 2019

Land Value $337,884 $280,245 $280,245

Building Value $203,914 $205,478 $199,568

XF Value $22,308 $22,308 $22,308

Market Value $564,106 $508,031 $502,121

Assessed Value $558,834 $508,031 $502,121

Benefits Information

Benefit Type 2021 2020 2019

Non-Homestead Cap Assessment Reduction $5,272

Labor Unions Exemption $508,031 $502,121

Note: Not all benefits are applicable to all Taxable Values (i.e. County, School
Board, City, Regional).

Short Legal Description

24 53 40 0.91 AC M/L
SPRING VIEW 2ND ADDN PB 51-100
TRACT A
LOT SIZE 39751 SQUARE FEET

Taxable Value Information

 2021 2020 2019

County

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 $0

School Board

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121

Taxable Value $564,106 $0 $0

City

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 $0

Regional

Exemption Value $0 $508,031 $502,121

Taxable Value $558,834 $0 $0

Sales Information

Previous
Sale

Price OR Book-
Page

Qualification Description

06/23/2021 $950,000 32601-3188 Qual by verifiable & documented
evidence

05/08/2019 $0 31436-4824 Federal, state or local government
agency

Summary Report
Generated On : 6/3/2022

The Office of the Property Appraiser is continually editing and updating the tax roll. This website may not reflect the most current information on record. The Property Appraiser
and Miami-Dade County assumes no liability, see full disclaimer and User Agreement at http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp

Version:

2021 Aerial Photography  200ft

http://www.miamidade.gov/info/disclaimer.asp


 

DocVerify ID: A6EB1C2D-FA64-4D14-ACD9-693A2FE2FCCB

Created: June 02, 2022 13:59:19 -8:00

Pages: 3

Electronic Notary: Yes / State: FL

Application - Enclave at Miami Springs - FLUM amendment Signed.pdf

This document is a DocVerify VeriVaulted protected version of the document named above. It was created by a notary or on the behalf of a
notary, and it is also a DocVerify E-Sign document, which means this document was created for the purposes of Electronic Signatures and/or
Electronic Notary. Tampered or altered documents can be easily verified and validated with the DocVerify veriCheck system.

Go to www.docverify.com at any time to verify or validate the authenticity and integrity of this or any other DocVerify VeriVaulted document.

Generated Cover Page

DocVerify documents cannot be altered or tampered with in any way once they are protected by the DocVerify VeriVault System. Best viewed with Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat.
All visible electronic signatures contained in this document are symbolic representations of the persons signature, and not intended to be an accurate depiction of the persons actual signature
as defined by various Acts and/or Laws.

DocVerify ID: A6EB1C2D-FA64-4D14-ACD9-693A2FE2FCCB

www.docverify.com
693A2FE2FCCB

D
ELAE

S

D
O C V E R I F

Y

E-Signature Summary

E-Signature Notary: Betty Llerena (BLl)
June 02, 2022 14:13:55 -8:00 [8584AA0F950A] [162.244.152.118]
bllerena@brzoninglaw.com

D
ELAE

S

D
O C V E R I F

Y

http://www.docverify.com?document=webc&find=a6eb1c2d-fa64-4d14-acd9-693a2fe2fccb


1 
 

 

ZONING AND PLANNING BOARD 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

 

How to apply for a public hearing: 

 

1. Please complete the application below in its entirety (please use binder clips to attach documents together; do 

not staple any documents together).  

2. Attach drawings or pictures to support your request. 

3. Attach five (5) copies of the application.  (Do not include this instruction sheet). 

4. Attach five (5) copies of the letter of request, stating the nature of the request and the reason(s) you feel it should 

be approved. 

5. Attach five (5) copies of the property survey, drawn to-scale that is less than one (1) year old. The applicant is 
further required to submit a site plan of the property proposed for public hearing consideration which provides 
sufficient set back information and dimensions which will provide the Board with a better understanding of the 
public hearing request. 

6. Attach five (5) copies of supporting plans at 11” x 17”, and one copy at 24” x 36”. 

7. The City reserves the right to require any additional information or documentation that it determines to be 
relevant or material to the Board’s consideration of the pending application prior to scheduling the application for 
the public hearing before the Board. 

8. Complete the application form in blue ink and submit it with any attachments along with the required fee to the 
Planning Department, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL. 33166, no later than the first day of the month 
preceding the month of the meeting date of the Zoning and Planning Board. 

9. The applicant(s) or a representative (with a letter of authorization) must be present at the meeting.  

10. The Zoning and Planning Board meets on the first Monday of each month, except July, when no meeting is held.   

11. The applicant, as well as all surrounding neighbors will receive a courtesy notice from the Planning Department 
ten (10) days prior to the scheduled meeting date.  

12. The Zoning and Planning consists of five (5) members and one (1) alternate.  Three votes are needed in favor of 
the project in order for the public hearing to be approved.  In the case that more than one Board member is 
absent, you may decide to table the public hearing request for the next scheduled meeting date when the absent 

Board members are present. 

13. In the event the public hearing request is denied, the decisions of the Zoning and Planning Board may be 
appealed to the Board of Appeals pursuant to Code Section 150.113.  Any person appealing any decision may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record is made of the proceedings, which record includes the testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is made.  (F.S. 286.0105).  A request, in letter form, must be made to the City 
Manager within ten (10) days starting with the day after the meeting date.  All appeals must be accompanied by 
a payment of $25.00, which will cover a second series of notices, postings, and various other preparations.  The 
appeal will be heard on the last Wednesday of the month by the City Council sitting as the Board of Appeals, or 
at such other time as the City Council deems appropriate. 

 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 122AC7F7-6F58-4BE9-B570-66F25D63394A

DocVerify ID: A6EB1C2D-FA64-4D14-ACD9-693A2FE2FCCB
www.docverify.com

A
6E

B
1C

2D
-F

A
64

-4
D

14
-A

C
D

9-
69

3A
2F

E
2F

C
C

B
 -

--
 2

02
2/

06
/0

2 
13

:5
9:

19
 -

8:
00

Page 1 of 3 1693A2FE2FCCB



2 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS       HEARING APPLICATION 
 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
APPLICANT NAME 
Enclave at Miami Springs, LLC 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 
1101 Wren Avenue, Miami Springs, FL 33166 

APPLICANT PHONE NUMBER (BEST NUMBER TO REACH YOU)   
305-375-6227    

E-MAIL ADDRESS 
MTapanes@BRzoninglaw.com  

 
 
Request that a determination be made by the Zoning and Planning Board of the City of 
Miami Springs, on the following project that was reviewed and discussed with the City 
Planner, in which the City Planner could not exercise discretion and which, in his opinion, 
might properly come before the Board, specifically: 
 

1. Amendment to the Future Land Use Map from Public Building to Single Family 
Residential  
 

 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION:  1101 Wren Avenue, Miami Springs, FL 33166 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Tract A, of Second Addition to SPRING VIEW, according 
to the Plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 51, at Page 
100 of the Public Records of Miami-Dade County, Florida 

LOT SIZE AND ZONING DISTRICT 
 

39,751 sq. ft                         R-1C              . 
LOT SIZE                           ZONING DISTRICT 

HAVE ANY PREVIOUS APPLICATIONS OR APPEALS BEEN FILED WITHIN THE LAST SIX (6) MONTHS IN CONNECTION WITH THESE PREMISES? 
YES __________  NO ____X__________ 
IF YES, BRIEFLY STATE THE NATURE OF THE PREVIOUS APPLICATION: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
IF YOU ARE THE OWNER, HOW LONG HAVE YOU OWNED THE PROPERTY? 

June 23, 2021 

WHAT IS THE APPROXIMATE MARKET VALUE INVOLVED IN THIS PROJECT? 

TBD 

 
 
Please see the attached letter of intent and related exhibits for background information 
pertaining to the request.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This space left blank intentionally.  Signatures to follow.] 
 

 

Building & Planning Department 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 
Phone: 305-805-5034 Fax: 305-805-5036 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov  

Official Use Only 
Submittal Date: ________ 
Case No.: ____________ 

2.  Accompanied by administrative site plan approval.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 122AC7F7-6F58-4BE9-B570-66F25D63394A

DocVerify ID: A6EB1C2D-FA64-4D14-ACD9-693A2FE2FCCB
www.docverify.com

A
6E

B
1C

2D
-F

A
64

-4
D

14
-A

C
D

9-
69

3A
2F

E
2F

C
C

B
 -

--
 2

02
2/

06
/0

2 
13

:5
9:

19
 -

8:
00

Page 2 of 3 2693A2FE2FCCB

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


3 
 

 
 
 
 
______________________     _________________________ 
Signature of Owner      Signature of Co-Owner 
 
______________________     _________________________ 
Printed name of Owner     Printed name of Co-Owner 
 
 
The contents of this petition are     
Sworn to and subscribed before 
me this ____ day of ________, 
20___. 
 
 
_________________________    ___________________________ 
SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF FLORIDA    SIGNATURE OF NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF FLORIDA 
 
____________________________    ______________________________ 
PRINT NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC      PRINT NAME OF NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
STAMP SEAL       STAMP SEAL 
 
COMMISSION EXPIRES: _______________________________   COMMISSION EXPIRES: __________________________ 
PERSONALLY KNOWN: ________________________________   PERSONALLY KNOWN: ___________________________ 
PRODUCED IDENTIFICATION: ___________________________   PRODUCED IDENTIFICATION: ______________________ 

The contents of this petition are 
Sworn to and subscribed before 
me this ____ day of ________, 
20___. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 122AC7F7-6F58-4BE9-B570-66F25D63394A

Alex Andreus

6/2/2022

DocVerify ID: A6EB1C2D-FA64-4D14-ACD9-693A2FE2FCCB
www.docverify.com

A
6E

B
1C

2D
-F

A
64

-4
D

14
-A

C
D

9-
69

3A
2F

E
2F

C
C

B
 -

--
 2

02
2/

06
/0

2 
13

:5
9:

19
 -

8:
00

Page 3 of 3 3693A2FE2FCCB

8584AA0F950A

Signed on 2022/06/02 14:13:55 -8:00

D
o

cV
er

if
yBetty Llerena

Commission # HH 221018
Notary Public - State of Florida
My Commission Expires Mar 05, 2026

8584AA0F950ANotary Stamp 2022/06/02 14:13:55 PST

X

March 5, 2026

Betty Llerena



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 1 of 5 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ - 2022 1 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 2 

FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 32-68, “MITIGATION OF 3 

FINES,” OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 4 

ESTABLISH PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES FOR THE 5 

MITIGATION OF CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES, 6 

PENALTIES AND LIENS; PROVIDING FOR 7 

CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 8 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 9 

EFFECTIVE DATE.  10 

 11 

WHEREAS, Section 32-68 of the City of Miami Springs’ (the “City”) Code provides 12 

the Code Compliance Board or Special Magistrate with broad authority to negotiate and 13 

settle all code enforcement fines and liens; and   14 

 15 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to streamline the process of mitigating code 16 

enforcement fines, penalties and liens and provide uniformity and guidelines with 17 

percentages to assist the City and the Board or Special Magistrate; and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, it is the goal of the City to incentivize property owners to timely come 20 

into compliance with the City Code and assure that the fines, penalties and liens are paid; 21 

and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that diligent property owners should receive a 24 

benefit for being timely and efficient with correcting Code violations, and should 25 

understand the mitigation process and have an expectation to be treated fairly and 26 

uniformly; and  27 

 28 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this Ordinance is in the best interests of 29 

City residents and property owners.  30 

  31 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 32 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 33 

 34 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted and 35 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 36 

 37 

Section 2. Amending Code. That Section 32-68 in Article VIII, Chapter 32, of 38 

Title III of the City Code of Ordinances, entitled “Mitigation of fines” is hereby amended to 39 

read as follows: 40 

 41 

TITLE III – ADMINISTRATION 42 

 43 

Chapter 32 – BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES 44 

 45 

ARTICLE VIII. – CODE COMPLIANCE BOARD 46 

* * * 47 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 48 

Sec. 32-68. - Mitigation of fines. Mitigation of Fines, Penalties and Liens. 49 

 50 

(A) The violator, or the violator's successors or assigns who have an ownership interest 51 

in the property encumbered by a lien pursuant to this article may request a mitigation 52 

hearing to reduce the fines only after the violations encompassed within the code 53 

compliance case have been corrected. Upon receipt of a written request for a mitigation 54 

hearing, the clerk for the board shall set the matter for a hearing before the board. 55 

 56 

(B) A mitigation hearing is not an appeal or a de novo review of the code compliance 57 

case. The formal quasi-judicial procedures shall not apply. 58 

 59 

(C) At the mitigation hearing, the board may consider the following criteria: 60 

(1) Good cause for a reduction of the fines. 61 

(2) The cooperation of the violator, including whether the violator appeared before 62 

the board at the original hearing. 63 

(3) The gravity of the violation. 64 

(4) The actions taken by the violator to correct the violation. 65 

(5) Whether there was an extraordinary hardship, which affected compliance. 66 

(6) Whether the violator is a repeat violator. 67 

(7) The total or estimated costs incurred by the City for the handling of the case. 68 

(8) The amount of the proposed reduction. 69 

(9) Any equitable considerations raised by the violator or the City relating to the 70 

amount of the reduction. 71 

(10)The number of days that the violation existed. 72 

 73 

(D)In no event shall the fines be reduced below the costs incurred by the City in its 74 

prosecution of the violations. 75 

 76 

(E)The board has the discretion to grant or deny a request for mitigation. 77 

 78 

(a) The terms “fine,” “civil penalty” or “lien” are used interchangeably in this section and 79 

each term is synonymous with each other and shall encompass fines, civil penalties and 80 

liens.  81 

 82 

(b) The board, special magistrate, and City Manager are authorized to negotiate, reduce 83 

and settle fines in accordance with the terms of this section. 84 

 85 

(c) The violator, or the violator's successor or assign, who has an ownership interest in 86 

the property encumbered by a code enforcement fine (the "applicant"), may file a request 87 

for mitigation to reduce such fine with the City Manager or designee. After receipt of the 88 

request for mitigation, a compliance inspection shall be conducted and thereafter a 89 

hearing may be scheduled if the code compliance inspector finds that all violations were 90 

corrected but that the fines have not yet been paid and that there are no other outstanding 91 

code violations, whether on the property to which the lien attaches or on another property 92 

belonging to the applicant, or debts owed to the City for which the applicant is responsible.  93 

 94 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 3 of 5 

 

(d) Upon receipt of a written request for mitigation of fines and the filing of an affidavit of 95 

partial compliance by the code compliance inspector which sets forth that all outstanding 96 

violations of the board or special magistrate’s order have been corrected, except for 97 

payment of any outstanding fines, the City shall set the matter for a mitigation hearing 98 

before the board or special magistrate.  99 

 100 

(e) The City Manager, or designee, may, in his or her sole discretion, enter into a 101 

settlement agreement with the applicant to pay a fine that may be reduced pursuant to 102 

the guidelines in this section without the need for a hearing.  103 

 104 

(f) At the hearing, the fact-finding determination of the board or special magistrate shall 105 

be limited to evidence establishing: 106 

(1) Good cause for a reduction of the fines; 107 

(2) The amount of the reduction; and 108 

(3) Any equitable considerations raised by the applicant or the City relating to good 109 

cause or the amount of the reduction. 110 

 111 

Said hearing shall not be an opportunity to appeal any finding of fact or conclusions of 112 

law set forth in any prior order of the board or special magistrate or any administrative 113 

determination of the City. 114 

 115 

(g) The board or special magistrate may reduce the fines based on a showing of good 116 

cause once the applicant has otherwise complied with an order of the board or special 117 

magistrate, but in no event shall the fines be reduced below the administrative costs 118 

incurred by the City nor shall any administrative costs previously awarded by the board 119 

or special magistrate, costs of repair, or assessment liens be waived or reduced. 120 

 121 

(h) In determining good cause, and the amount of the reduction, if any, the board or 122 

special magistrate shall consider: 123 

(1) The gravity of the violation. 124 

(2) Any actions taken by the violator or applicant to correct the violation. 125 

(3) Any previous, or other outstanding violations, whether committed by the violator 126 

or applicant, or pertaining to the property to which the lien attaches, unless an 127 

order finding a violation is under appeal at the time of the determination. 128 

(4) Whether the violation is irreparable or irreversible in nature. 129 

(5) Whether the violator or applicant's failure to timely comply within the time 130 

provided by the code compliance inspector, board or the special magistrate is due 131 

to an inability to comply based on factors beyond the control of the violator or 132 

applicant. 133 

 134 

(i)  Upon a finding of good cause, the board or special magistrate has the sole discretion 135 

to grant or deny the request for a mitigation of fines according to the following guidelines, 136 

provided the reduction is to an amount that is not less than the administrative costs 137 

incurred by the City: 138 

(1) If compliance occurs within three months of the deadline for compliance 139 

provided for in the order of the board or special magistrate, a maximum reduction 140 

of 80 percent of the total fines; 141 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 4 of 5 

 

(2) If compliance occurs more than three months but less than 12 months from the 142 

compliance deadline, a maximum reduction of 60 percent of the total fines; 143 

(3) If compliance occurs from 12 months to 18 months of the compliance deadline, 144 

a maximum of 40 percent of the total fines; and 145 

(4) If compliance occurs more than 18 months after the compliance deadline, a 146 

maximum of 25 percent of the total fines. 147 

 148 

(j) The board or special magistrate has the authority where there is a demonstrated 149 

showing of financial hardship or other good cause to reduce the fines below the reduction 150 

guidelines. The board or special magistrate shall exercise this authority with great caution 151 

and only in documented and exceptional circumstances. An applicant alleging financial 152 

hardship has the burden of presenting evidence of inability to pay the fines. 153 

 154 

(k) If fines are reduced, the order of the board or special magistrate shall provide that, if 155 

the applicant fails to pay the reduced fines by the date ordered by the board or special 156 

magistrate, then the original amount of the total fines shall be automatically reinstated. 157 

The board or special magistrate may impose conditions on the granting of a request for 158 

mitigation of the fines and may allow additional hearings upon request if necessary to 159 

establish compliance with said conditions before an order reducing the fines is entered. 160 

 161 

(l) The order reducing the fines shall not be recorded in the public records and the order 162 

shall so provide. 163 

 164 

(m) Upon receipt of timely payment in full of the mitigated amount of fines and the 165 

recording costs, the City shall record a satisfaction of lien in the public records, if 166 

applicable. 167 

 168 

(n) A mitigation of fines shall only be granted once as to any violation of an order of the 169 

board or special magistrate. No mitigation shall be granted: 170 

(1) To reduce an initial civil penalty or an award of administrative costs; 171 

(2) To reduce the fines for an uncorrectable violation; 172 

(3) If the City Attorney has requested authorization to bring further enforcement 173 

action or commenced an action to obtain compliance with the order of the board 174 

or special magistrate, including, but not limited to, an action for injunctive relief, 175 

foreclosure, or money judgment; or 176 

(4) If, for whatever reason, the fines have already been paid. 177 

 178 

* * * 179 

 180 

Section 3. Codification. That it is the intention of the City Council and it is 181 

hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part 182 

of the City Code, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered to 183 

accomplish such intentions, and that the word Ordinance shall be changed to Section or 184 

other appropriate word. 185 



Ordinance No.   -2022 
Page 5 of 5 

 

Section 4. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to 186 

be severable and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for 187 

any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 188 

validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but 189 

they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand 190 

notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 191 

Section 5. Conflicts. All Sections or parts of Sections of the Code of 192 

Ordinances, all ordinances or parts of ordinances, and all Resolutions, or parts of 193 

Resolutions, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 194 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective 195 

immediately upon adoption on second reading. 196 

PASSED ON FIRST READING on the    day of  , 2022, on a motion 197 

made by      and seconded by     . 198 

PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this   day of  , 2022, 199 

on a motion made by    and seconded by    . Upon being put to a 200 

roll call vote, the vote was as follows: 201 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez    202 

Councilman Bob Best      203 

Councilwoman Jacky Bravo    204 

Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet    205 

Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell    206 

 207 

 208 

              209 

       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 210 

MAYOR 211 

ATTEST: 212 

 213 

 214 

        215 

ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  216 

CITY CLERK 217 

 218 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 219 

FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 220 

 221 

 222 

        223 

WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 224 

CITY ATTORNEY 225 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-   

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, PROVIDING 
FOR THE FIRST BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2022-2023 GENERAL FUND, SPECIAL REVENUE, 
AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGETS BY RE-
APPROPRIATING RESERVED FUND BALANCES TO 
FUND OPEN ENCUMBRANCES THROUGH SEPTEMBER 
30, 2022; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2022, the City of Miami Springs (the “City”) 

Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-4032 adopting the City’s fiscal year 2022-2023 

Budget (the “Budget”); and 

WHEREAS, it is a generally accepted accounting practice of municipal 

government to re-appropriate reserved equity accounts to fund open encumbrances 

from the prior fiscal year immediately after the beginning of the new fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Department has identified $735,048 in valid 

outstanding encumbrances/purchase orders as of September 30, 2022, which represent 

financial obligations of the City as of the close of the fiscal year ending September 30, 

2022; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to approve and 

authorize the re-appropriation of reserved equity accounts to the fiscal year 2022-2023 

General Fund and Special Revenue and Capital Projects Fund in order to fund open 

encumbrances from the City’s prior fiscal year as provided in Exhibit “A” attached hereto 

and incorporated herein; and 

WHEREAS, Section 166.241, Florida Statutes requires the governing body of a 

municipality to adopt a budget each fiscal year and authorizes the governing body of 

each municipality at any time within a fiscal year or within 60 days following the end of 

the fiscal year to amend a budget for that year.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. That the above recitals are confirmed, adopted, and 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof by reference. 



Res. No. 21-   
Page 2 of 3 

 

Section 2. First Amendment to Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget. That the 

City Council hereby authorizes and approves the amended budgetary appropriations as 

described in this Resolution and reflected on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein in order to provide for the re-appropriation of reserved fund 

balances for open purchase order obligations through September 30, 2022 in the 

amount of $735,048. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be effective immediately 

upon adoption.  

The foregoing Resolution was offered by     who moved its 

adoption.  The motion was seconded by     and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows: 

Vice Mayor Dr. Victor Vazquez   
Councilman Bob Best    
Councilman Dr. Walter Fajet   
Councilwoman Jacky Bravo   
Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of October, 2022. 

 
 
 
              
       MARIA PUENTE MITCHELL 
ATTEST:      MAYOR 
 
 
        
ERIKA GONZALEZ, MMC  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE AND RELIANCE OF THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS ONLY: 
 
 
        
WEISS SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY



EXHIIBIT A 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 BUDGET 

 



EXHIBIT "A"

City of Miami Springs
FY 2022-23 Budget Amendment

All Operating Funds

Adopted Amendment Amended
Fund/Classification Budget No. 1 Ref Budget

General Fund  
Revenues

Taxes $9,567,252 $9,567,252
Excise Taxes 2,770,585               2,770,585               
Licenses & Permits 200,000                  200,000                  
Intergovernmental Revenues 2,226,388               2,226,388               
Charges for Services 2,512,300               2,512,300               
Fines & Forfeitures 1,372,526               1,372,526               
Miscellaneous 371,802                  371,802                  
Proceeds from debt 500,000                  500,000                  
Transfers from other funds 408,210                  408,210                  
Fund Balance 318,762                  $371,840 1          690,602                  

Total General Fund $20,247,825 $371,840 $20,619,665
Expenditures

City Council 183,132 $2,287 1 185,419
City Manager 429,952 $710 1 430,662
City Clerk 345,606 $3,509 1 349,115
City Attorney 236,722 236,722
Human Resources 330,171 $104 1 330,275
Finance-Administration 491,672 491,672
Finance-Professional Services 273,756 273,756
Information Technology 417,383 $6,182 1 423,565
Planning 90,957 $2,867 1 93,824
Police 8,414,457 93,815 1 8,508,272
Code Enforcement 310,376  310,376
Public Works 2,252,473  2,252,473
Recreation & Culture 2,951,745 129,055 1 3,080,800
Golf Operations 2,043,290 133,312 1 2,176,602
Transfers to other funds 1,476,133 1,476,133
Budgeted Increase to reserves 0  0

Total General Fund 20,247,825 371,840 20,619,665

Sanitation Operations 2,608,062   2,608,062

Stormwater Operations 426,820   426,820

Total Enterprise Funds 3,034,882 $0 $3,034,882
Special Revenue & Capital Projects

Road & Transportation 632,579  $632,579

Senior Center Operations 1,199,097  1,199,097

Capital Projects 0 288,613 1 288,613

Building Operations 1,135,228 71,475 1 1,206,703

Law Enforcement Trust 160,954 3,120 1 164,074
Total Special Revenue & Capital Projects Funds 3,127,858 $363,208 $3,491,066

    
Debt Service 1,672,926 $0 $1,672,926

Total Debt Service  1,672,926 $1,672,926
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS $28,083,491 $735,048 $28,818,539

Legend:    
 
1) $735,048 in encumbrances rolled forward from prior fiscal year.

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

MIAMI SPRINGS CHARTER 

 
SECTION 4.02 – Removal; vote of confidence 
 

(2) The City Council shall at the first regular meeting in October of each year, 
cause a vote of confidence to be taken as to the continued services of the City 
Manager. 

 
 


	Agenda Summary - October 10, 2022
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3
	4B Yard of the Month - October 2022
	4C Artist of the Month October 2022
	8A Minutes for September 26, 2022
	9A Resolution - Golf Carts
	9B Recommendation - Acuchnet
	9C Recommendation - Tropic Oil
	9D Recommendation - Hector Turf
	9E Recommendation - Toshiba 
	11A Ordinance - Future Land Use Map 1101 Wren Avenue
	11B Ordinance - Mitigation of Fines
	11C Resolution - First Budget Amendment
	12A Vote of Confidence - City Manager



